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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Tothe Shareholder of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the
"Company” or the "Parent company”) and its subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including & summary of significant
aocounting policies.

In Gur opinken, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditar’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financiol Stotements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates
(U.AE), and we hawve fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opindon,

Material Uncertainty Reloted to Going Concemn

We draw attention 1o note 3 (¢} to the consolidated financial statements, which states that the
Group has incurred a loss of AED 2,250,351 Tor the year ended 31 March 2024 and at that date,
the Group's losses aggregated to AED 14,398,824, Further, certaln subsidiaries of the Group have
accumulated losses and net deficit in their equity funds. These events or conditions, Indicate that
4 material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. However, the shareholder has agreed to continue with the operations of the
Group and has agreed to provide continuing financial support to enable the Group to discharge
its liabdlities as and when they fall due. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statemants
have been prepared on & going concern basis. Our opinion 1s not modifled in respect of this
matter.

continged.,,
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{continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chorged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a trus and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with applicable
provision of the Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's abifity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going
concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or bo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
proCess.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frasd or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but 5 not & guarantee that an awdit conducted in accordance with 1545 will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o
influerice the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsne
to those risks, and ocbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion, The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misreprasentations, or the override of internal control.

# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

continued..,
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{continued)

¢ [Evzluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

#  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's wse of the golng concerm basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as 4 going concern., If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report too the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
ppinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease to
continue as a going concern.

# Evaluate the overall presemtation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, inclueding the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

e Dbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit apinian.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficlencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
We further confirm that the consolidated financial statements comply with the applicable

provisions of the Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021,

Faor PKF

e

Saranga Lalwani
Fartner

Registration Mo, 5468
Dubai

United Arab Emirates
14 May 2024
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CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 AT 31 MARCH 2024

Motes 024 2023
AELD BELD
ASSETS
Man-current assets
Property, plant and equipment F) 62 850,463 30,916,554
Investrments B 27,823,943 16,854,454
Other financial assals 9 12,424,867 14,924 867
104,099,273 B2 BU5 B7S
Currant assets
Inventaries 10 4,583,066 4,972,343
Trade and other receivables 11 7896008 25E4 054
Other current assats 12 3,352,271 4,569,403
Due from a related party 13 3,495 BES 236 444
Contract assets 14 7,158,311 B, 6407 GE}
Cther financial assets 9 2,380,36E 99,000
Cash and cash equivalents 15 9,900,572 17,870,750
38,766,651 37,130,916
Total assets 142 865 D24 99,876,791
ECILITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholdaer’'s funds
Share capital 16 24, E30,000 16,877,000
Share prermium 17 44,192 400 19,830,420
Share application money 18 - 14,775,944
Statutory Fiseree 1,366 1,364
Accumulated losses {14,308 £24) {12,148 473)
Forelgn currency transkation reserve [2,694,148) (735,171}
Equity attributable to shareholder of the Parent 51,530,795 33,557,050
Non-contredling interest 15 2 90% 155,096
Total shareholder's funds 51,533,791 33,753,086
Mon-current labilities
Loans from sharehofder 20 23,695,653 17,701,527
Long-term borrowings 21 41,647,242 13,851,133
Provision for stall end-of-service benefits 22 250,608 169,567
Lease liabilities 23 972955 ol
67,566,458 31,722,227
Current Rabilities
Lzans from shareholder 20 3.426,204 663,961
Shiort-term Borrowings 24 2,042,300 663,360
Due to a retated party 13 38238849 11,1559 361
Trade and ather payahles 25 11,007,897 3502910
Othar current liabiities 26 242438 5,641,684
Lease liabilitiss 23 133,338 =
Coatract liabiities 14 2,685,629 7,765,142
23,365,675 29,401,478
Total liabilites 90,932,133 61,123,705
Total shareholder's funds and liabilities i42 865,924 09,876,731

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments.

The raport of the Independent auditor is =et forth on pages 1 to 3.

Approved and authorksed for lssue by the shareholder on 7 May 2024 and signed on their behalf by
s, Shivani Agraval,

For CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FICD
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5S AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit/{loss)

Cther income

Share of profit from associate
Share of profit from joint venture
Administrative expenses

Interest income

Finance costs

LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TaX

Income tax:
Current tay expenss

LSS FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX

Other comprehensive Income:

Htems that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

Exchange difference on translation of operations
Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Loss attributable to:
Shareholder of the parent
Non-controlling interest

i8

29

30
B{a)
&[b)
a1
a3

33

35

2024 2023
AED AED
52,937,962 39,585,839
(43,103,620 (43,494,243
9,834,342 (3,908,004)
158,787 90,776
353,153 776,562
29,581
(9,292,009) [¥,223,236)
917,806 1,514,828
(3,981,976) (2,647,715)
(1,980,316) (11,357,789
{270,035) 5
[2,250,351) (11,397.789)
(1,954,977) [208,699)
(1,954,377) (808,699
(4,205,328) (12,205,428)
(4,205,328) (12,2086,488)
m,zua.s:;J tli‘,zﬂﬁ,dﬂ;}

The accormpanying notes form an integral part of these conselidated financial statemants.

The repart of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 1o 3.
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CLEANMAX S0LAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

iCash flows from operating activities
Loss for the vear
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Credit balance written back
Share of prafit fram joint venture
Share of profit from associate
Proviskon for staff end-of-service benefits

Changes in:

- Inventories

= Trade and other receivables

= DOther current assets

= Confract assets

- Trade and other payvables

= Dther current Habilities

= Contract liabilities
Staff end-of-service benefits paid
Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Met cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
{Decrease]fincrease in other financial assets
nvestment in joint ventune
Met movements in investment in associate
(Payments to)/receipts from related parties (net)
Met cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Recelpts from share application manay
lssue of share capital
Receipts of share premium money (net)
[Payments to)/receipts from related parties (net)
Receipts from/(repayment of) borrowings {net)
Transaction costs paid
Payment of leasa liabilities
Loan availed/{repayment of loan) from shareholder {net)
Met cash from financing activities

Foreign currency translation difference

Met (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 15)

2024 2023
AED AED
(2,250,351) {11,397,784)
2,109,721 687,785
3,981,976 2,647,715
(29,927) -
{29,581} -
(353,153) {776,562)
BE,705 124,278
3,517,390 (8,714,573}
380,277 684,257
(5,211,054) (253,277)
1,317,132 (2,922,617)
(510,329) (3,095,309)
7,534,854 (6,297,328)
(5,399,256) 4,925
{5,075,518) 1,885,245
(7,664) (191,158}
{3,445,168) (18,899 835)
{3,379,737) (2,407,663}
{6,624,905) (21,307,498}
(32,015 840} {14,366,152)
51,201 165,639
{781,368) 11,033,129
(1,3886,755) -
(9,200,000} s
{3,259,211) 41,961
{47,491,973) (3,125423)
- 34,706,848
7,953,000 -
9,544,413 -
{7.335,477) 8,539,242
79,170,049 (1,075,022)
{111,380) (76,120
{118,568) =
9,200,000 [6,299,625)
48,302,037 15,885,323
(1,954,977) (B08,699)
{7,0960,818) 10,643,703
17,870,790 7,227,087
5,900,972 17,870,790

The accompanying nobes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

The repart of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. LEGALSTATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY

a] CLEANMAX SOLAR MEMA FZCO (the "Company” or the "Parent company™] 5 a free zone
companmy  with limited HRability incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates under
Implementing Regulation Mo, 1/98 issued by the Dubal Alrport Free Zone Authority pursuant
to Law Mo, 2 of 1996 and its amendment Mo. (2] of 2000 and amendment Law Mo, [25] of
2005 [repealed by Dubal Alrport Free Zone Authority Company Regulation 2021}, The
Company was registered on 23 May 2017 and commenced its operations since then. The
registered address s 2E MO32, Dubal Alrport Free Zone, Dubal, UAE, These consolidated
financial statements include the operating result of a branch with license no. 3348 and
operating results of the subsidiaries as mentioned in note 1(c).

b}  The principal activities of the Parent company and its subsidiaries (note 1(c) (together
referred to as "the Group®} during the year were solar energy systems & components
trading and power generation, transmission & distribution equipment, electrical fitting
contracting, solar energy system installation, business management consulting and general
senvice and engaged in production, assembly, distribution and management services to build

a power plant,

¢}  These consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and the results of
operations of the Company and its following subsidiaries:

Mame of the Country of Legal Beneficial Principal activity Licensa/
subsidiary incorporation ownership  cwnership / Registration
% controlling .
interest
%
Sunroofs Enviro United Arab 100% 100% Electrical fitting contracting 201633
Solar Energy Emiratas and solar energy system
Systems LLC installatian
Chzanax IHO Thailandgd 100% 100% Business management 105551090550
{Thailand) ponsulting and
Company penadal service
Limited"
Claanhdax Thailand 100% 1005 Production, assembly, 0105562053327
Energy distribution and
{Thailand)] Co., management sarvices to
[ tel build a power plant.
Cleanman Thailand 455 100 Business management QLOG565153748
Engineering consulting and general
(Thailand) SeTvite
Company
Limitad™"

Page 8 of 52



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

d}

{i} Owt of 500 000 sharas, 1 share is held by individual a5 & nominee shareholder. The Parent
company holds remaining 499,999 shares.
(i) Out of 465 400 shares, 1 share is held by individual a5 a nominee shareholder. The Parent
company holds remaining 465,399 shares.
(i} Out of 500 shares, 255 shares are held by one company [Asian Legal Solutions Holding
Co Ltd) a5 a nominee sharehalder, The Parent company holds remaining 245 shares.,

The parent and the ultimate parent company & Clean Max Envire Solutions Put Lid,, India.
The management and control are vested with Ms. Shivani Agrawal and Mr Kuldeep Jain,
Directars, wha are Indian nationals,

BASIS OF COMSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2024. Control is achieved when
the Parent company |5 exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the Invesbes.
Specifically, the Parent company controls an investee if and only if the Parent company has:

»  Power over the investee (Le., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investes);

& Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

« The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

& Rights arising from other contractual agreements.

= The Parent's vating rights and potential voting rights,

The Parent company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consalidation of subsidiaries begins when the Parent company cbtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent company loses control of the subsidiaries, Assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are
inciuded im the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income
from the date the Parent company gains control until the date the Parent company ceases to

control the subsidiaries,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income [OC!) are attributed to
equity holders of the Parent company and to the non-controfling interests even If this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to being their accounting policies into the
line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-growp transactions are eliminated in full,

Page 9 of 52



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

b}

c}

d)

e}

a

o)

& change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributable to the non-controlling interest even if that results
in a deficit balance.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the net results of operations and the
pperating assets and liabilities of the Parent company and its subsidiaries consolidated on a
line-by-line basis.

All material unrealised profit, where applicable on inter-company inventoryservices that are
purchased/availad have been eliminated.

The results of the subsidiaries acqguired or disposed off during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive imcome from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

The reporting date of above-mentioned entities are 31 March,

Mon-controlling interest in the net assets of subsidiaries is identified separately from the
Parant company's share of equity. The interest of non-controlling shareholders is the amount
of interest at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the nan-
controlling shareholders’ interest in the subsidiaries’ equity are allocated against the Interest
of the Parent company except to the extent that the non-controlling shareholders have a
binding obligation and is able to make an additicnal investment to cover the kosses,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB} and which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023, and the requirements of the Dubal Alrpert Free Zone iImplementing Regulations 2021,

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared wsing historical cost, except for certain

assets carried at fair value.

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset or
cash or cash equivalents expected to be pald to satisfy the Hability,

Page 10 af 52



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

c

d}

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahbility in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

Going concern
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,

When preparing the consclidated financial statements, management makes an assessment
of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis unless management either intends to liguidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Group has incurred a loss of AED 2,250,351 for the year ended 31 March 2024 and at that

date, the Group's losses aggregabed to AED 14,398,324, Further, the following subsidiaries of
the Group have accumulated losses and net deficit in their equity funds:

(I} Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC incurred a loss of AED 3,359,591 for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and at that date its losses aggregated to AED 17,802,024 its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by AED 4,149,547 and had a net deficit of AED
4,280,658 in equity funds, Further, the Company is also subject to externally imposed
capital requirements as per provisions of the Article 308 of the UAE Federal Law MNo. {32)
of 2021

fiiy Cleaniax IHQ [Thalland) Company lmited Incured a boss of AED 11,059 for the year ended
31 March 2024 and at that date, the accumulated losses amounted to AED 2 488,554,

@) Cleanhax Energy (Thalland) Co Hd. Limited imcurred a loss of AED 658,736 for the yvear
ended 31 March 2024, and at that date, the accumulated losses amounted to AED 931,435,

These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continwe as a going concern. However, the
shareholder has agreed to continue with the operations of the Group and has agreed to
provide continuing financial support to enable the Group to discharge its liabilities as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on 3 going concern basis.

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Standards, omendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current year
The following standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations which became
effective for current pericd, did not have any significant impact on the Group's consclidated
financial statements:
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

€}

& [FRS 17 —Insurance Contracts

o Aamendments to IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

e Amendments to 1A5 1 - Classification of Liabllities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to 15 1 and IFRS Practice S5tatement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

e Amendments to 145 B - Definition of Accounting Estimates

= Amendments to A5 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilithes arising from a
Single Transaction

s Amendments to 1A% 12 - Intermnational Tax Reform = Pillar Two Model Rules

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

The following amendments, improvements and interpretations that are assessed by
management as likely to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements, have
been issued by the IASE prior to the date the consolidated financial statements were
authorized for isswe, but have not been applied in these consolidated financial statements

as their effective dates of adoption are for future accounting periods.

« Amendments to 145 1 - Mon-current Liabilities with Covenants {1 January 2024)
e Amendments to 145 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Hnance Arrangement [1 January 2024)
= Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (1 January 2024}

= Amendments to 145 21 - Lack of Exchangeability [1 January 2025)

= Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets bebween an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture. The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10
and 1A% 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold to an associate or
a joint venture (The 1ASE postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely -
Early adoption Is permitted)

# |FR5 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability Related Fimancial
Information and IFRS 52 Climate Related Disclosures (Effective upon adoption by
applicable regulatory)

Functional and presentation currency
Although the functional currencies of the Parent company and its subsidiaries are the local

currency of the country of domicile in which they operate, the consolidated financial
statements are presented In UAE Dirhams (AED) which is considered as the Group's
reporting currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are

as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, is depreciated
from the date the asset is available for use until it is derecognised, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Right-of-use assets 525 years
Solar equipment 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Tools and egulpment 5 years

Capital work-in-progress Is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is not depreciated.
This will be depreciated from the date the relevant assets are ready for use.

The Group has presented right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
aszets under property, plant and equipment [Refer notes 4{o) and 7).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
assel as appropriate only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group and such cost can be measured reliably. Such cost
Inciudes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised.

&ll other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial
peried in which they are incurred.

An zssessment of depreciation method, useful lives and residual values is undertaken at
each reporting date and, where material, If there is a change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustment is made to the depreciation charge.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying

amount, These are recognised within ‘other income/administrative expenses’ in profit or
levss.
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di

Impairment of tangible assets

At each reporting dabe, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
Poss. If amy such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss it any. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the acguirer estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time
value of maney and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset [cash-generating unit) s reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years, A reversal of an impalment loss is recognised immediately In profit or loss,
unkess the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impatrment [oss is treated as a revaluation Increase.

Investment in associates

Investments where the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the share capital of the investes
company, are treated as associates and accounted Tor under the eguity method of
accounting stating the investment initially at cost/fair value and adjusted for the Group’s
share of the changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acguisition, and

forany impairment in value.
Investments in joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
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h)

Jolnt vemtures

A joint venture s a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists anly when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Such investments are treated as joint ventures and accounted under the equity method of
accounting stating the investment initially at cost and adjusted for the Group's share of the
charges in netl assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is arrived at using
the Weighted Average Cost (WAC) and comprises invoice value plus applicable landing
charges less discounts. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any
estimated cost of completion and disposal.

Goods-in-transit represents the inventory over which Group has legal title based on terms of
purchase, but which are physically not received at the Group's warehouse.

Share premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as share
premium under eguity. Further, the transaction costs relating to additional shares issues
deducted from the share premium under equity.

Share application money

The amount received 4s application money for issuance of equity shares in future has been
classified as share application money under equity. Further, the transaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application under equity.

staff benefits

The Group provides staff end-of-service benefits to its non-UAE national employees as per
the applicable local laws. The entitlement to these benefits is based on the employees’ last
drawn salary and length of services which is accrued over the pericd of employment.
Provision for staff end-of-services benefits are disclosed as non-current liability.

Provision is also made for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and air fare for eligible
ermployees as per the policy of the Group. Provision relating to annual leave and air fare is
disclesed as current liability as employees are entitled to redeem these benefits at any point

of time after the reporting period.
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Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve is created by appropriating 5% of the profit of, Sunroofs Enviro Solar
Energy Systems LLC (the “subsidiary™) as required by UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, The
shareholder may resobve to dizcontinue such deduction when the reserve totals 50% of the
paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except as provided in the
Federal Law. During the year, no transfer of statutory reserve has been made on account of

oss incurred by the subsidiary.

Revenue recognition

The Group is in the business of solar energy systems B components trading and power
peneration, transmission & distribution equipment, electrical fitting contracting, solar
energy system installation, sale of solar power and engaged in production, assembly,
distribution and management services to build a power plant,

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step modal as
cet out im IFRS 15:

1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met,

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation Is a
pramise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
sarvices to a customer, excluding amaunts collected on behalf of third parties.

4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
tonsideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation at a point
in time or aver time.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:
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« The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs; or

# The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

# The Group's performance does not créate an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date,

The Group is required to assess each of it contracts with customers to determine whether
performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order 1o determine
the appropriate methad of recognising revenue,

Lale of goods
The Group has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognised &t a point in
time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of

the goods.

Sales of services
The Group has concluded that revenue from sale of services should be recognised over time
using input mathod.

Lale of energy
Revenue from the supply of energy is recognised on the basis of electricity provided during
the year on an accruals basis with reference to the meter readings.

Contract assets represents the energy income earned but not billed to the clients.

Construction contracts

Contract revenues are recognised over a perlod of time, based on the stage of completion of
the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs
incurred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs.

Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity.
Revenue |5 measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for satisfying the
performance obligation te the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct
relationship between the input and the productivity, Clalms are accounted for as income
when accepted by the customer,

Expected loss, if any, on contracts are recognised as expense in the period in which it is
foreseen, imespective of the stage of completion of the contract.
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Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are
approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for modifications of
contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct
and whether the pricing is a standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are
accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distingt are accounted for
prospectively, either a5 a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract iFf not priced at the standalone selling price.,

Contract costs
Contract costs comprise costs incurred to fulfil a contract that meet all of the following
criteria:

» The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the entity cam
specifically identify;

& The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be vsed in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

& The costs are expected to be recovered under the terms of the contract with the
customer.

Costs that relate directly to a contract {or a specific anticipated contract) include anmy of the
following:

* Direct labor salaries and wages of employees who provide the promised services directly
to the customer;

# Direct materials used in providing the promised services to a customer;

= Allocations of costs that relate directly to the confract or to contract activities, including
costs of contract management and supervision, insurance, and depreciation of tools and
equipment wsed in fulfilling the contract:

s Costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer under the contract;

# (Other costs that are incurred only because Group entered inte the contract such as
payments to subcontractors,

Depiction of a Group's performance might be {0 recognise revenue at an amount egual to

the cost of a good used to satisfy a performance obligation if the Group expects at contract
inception that all of the following conditions would be met:
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# The good is not distinct.

» The customer is expected to obtain control of the good significantly before receiving
services related to the good.

&  The cost of the transferred good |5 significant relative to the total expected costs to
completely satisfy the performance obligation.

* The Group procures the goods from a third party and is not significantly invelved in
designing and manuwfacturing the poods.

Contract assets

A Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset Is
recognised from the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are
transferred 1o receivable when the rights become unconditional.

Contract labilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer, If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, 2 contract lability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract abilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Interest income

Imterest income is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method,
under which the rate used exactly discounts estimated Tuture cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset,

Leases

As @ lessee

The Group has taken solar equipment and rooftop instalfation on lease, Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 5 to 25 years but may have extension options. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease arrangements do not impase any covenants, however leased asset is
not used as security for borrowing purposes,

Right-of-use gssets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the date the underlying asset is available for use.
Right-of-use asssts are measured at cost, less amy accumulated depreciation and mpairment
losses, and adjusted for any reimbursement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes:
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®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date kess any lease incentives
received;

& any initial costs and

» restoration costs.

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are deprecizted on a straight-line basis
ower the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use asseis are
subject to impairment.

Lease liobilities

The Group recognises lease liabilities at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
liabilities are measured at the net present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include:

® fixgd payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
recelvable;

®  yariable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

= amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;

® the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;
and

= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the aoption to terminate,

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate in calculating the
present value of lease payments and uses the incremental borrowling rate at the
commencement date of the lease if the profit rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable, Further, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured If there Is a
madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance lease payments ar a
change in the assessment o purchase the underkying asset.

Each lease payment is allocated betwesn the Rability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lability for each period,

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
12 months but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an Individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease arrangements
do not impose any covenants, however leased assets may not be used as securlty for
borrowing purposes.
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r)

Short-term leoses

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-term leases (l.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain & purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Caszh and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank current accounts, bank deposits free of
encumbrance with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of deposit and
highly liguid investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of
investment that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions
Tramsactions in foreign currencies are translated into UAE Dirhams at the rate of exchange

ruling on the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabllities expressed In forelgn currencies are translated into UAE
Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Gains or [osses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to profit or loss except
for foreign currency translation differences arising on account of presentation of assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes, which are included in shareholder’s
funds,

The translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into AED is performed for
consolidated statement of financial position account wsing the exchange rate in effect at the
reporting date and for revenue and expenses using the average exchange rate for the
perfod. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised N other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred
except those that are attributable to the acguisition and construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use {“gualifying assat™],
Such borrowing costs are capltalised as part of the related qualifying asset up to the date
the qualifying asset is ready for use.

Provisions

& provision is recognised when the Group has a present cbligation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it Is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settie the present obligation at the reporting date taking Into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to sattle the present obligation, it's carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recagnised as an asset it it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies and commitmants

Caontingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibllity of an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Value added tax

As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax [VAT), is charged at 5%
standard rate or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the taxable person.

The Group charges and recovers Value Added Tax [VAT) on every taxable supply and
deemed supply, In accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. Irrecoverable VAT
far which the Group cannot avail the credit is charged to the relevant expanditure category
included in costs of non-current assets. The Group files its VAT returns and computes the
payable tax (which is output tax less input tax) for the allotted tax periods and depaosit the
same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT return and Lax payment. VAT receivable
and VAT payable are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and has the intention to settle the same on net basis.

Taxation
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax:

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a peried.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income because of items of income or expensa that are taxable or
deductible in other years and tems that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with
applicable tax laws or due to difference in the reporting year and tax year l.e. ending an
March 31 for each year. Current tax is measured as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the conselidated financial statements.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax labllity is settled.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they

can be used.

Provision for taxation

Provision for tax is made as per the local tax regulations applicable for the current
assessment year on the basis of takable profits of the project office in India a5 computed by
inde pendent qualified tax consultant. Any tax liabkility that may arise in future on completion
of pending tax assessment relating to earfier years are not expected to be material and
wolld be paid for and accounted In these consclidated financial statements in the yvear in
which the assessments are completed.

Promotional privileges

Subsidiaries in Thailand has been granted promotional privileges for production of solar
moftop power under the Investment Promotion Act as approved by the Board of
Investment, Under these privileges, the subsidiary has received exemption from certain
taxes and duties as detailed in the certificate, including exemption from corporate income
tax from the amounts not exceeding 100% of capital investment excluding cost of land and
working capital for a period of 8 years from the date of the first revenue earned (17 August
2020). The details of promotion certificates are as follows:

Promotion certificate number Promaotion certificate date
62-1314-1-00-1-0 28 November 2019
62-1228-1-00-1-0 15 November 2021
65-1534-1-00-1-0 2 December 2022
55-1558+1-00-1-0 & 65-1567-1-00-1-0 14 Decernber 2022
66-1577-1-00-1-0 7 February 2023
G6-0708-1-00-1-0; 66-0705-1-00-1-0 & 66-0706-1-00-1-0 29 May 2023
67-0137-1-00-1-0 25 January 2024
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Current wersus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it s:
« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle.
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or,
e (ash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather assets are classified as nof-curnent.

A liability is current when:

® |5 expected to be settled in the nomal operating cycle.

® |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

= |t is due to be settled within twebse months after the reporting period. or,

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlerment of the llability for at least twelve
maonths after the reporting period.

The Group dassifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Financial instruments

Classification

Oninitial recognition, a financial asset is dassified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income - debt investment; fair value through other
comprehensive income — equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

In arder for a financial asset to be dassified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)° on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrumental level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
fimancial assets in order 1o generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or
both
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Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at
amartised cost. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date an which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the assel.

Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,

= The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or

& The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash fliows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through' arrangement; and either

1a] the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or

ib} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e. when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Measurement

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component
that is fnitially measured at the transaction price) s Initially measured at fair value plus, for
an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to s acguisition, Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets
and liabilithes.

Financial assefs ot omortised cost
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsaquently measured at amortised
cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any using the effective interest method.
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1, the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
coflect contractual cash flows; and

2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that
are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

Al other financial assats are subsequently measured at fair value.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
ar loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised In profit or loss.

The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of trade and other receivables, other
financial assets, due from a related party and cash and cash equivalents.

Finarncial Rabilites
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial llabilities at amortised cost comprise of current and non-current borrowings, loans
from shareholder, trade and other payables, lease [iabilitles {current and non-current) and

due to a related party,

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for investments in all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. expected credit losses are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Lass allowances are measured on either of the following basis:
— 12-month expected credit losses: expected credit losses that result from possible default
ayents within 12 months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime expected credit losses: sxpected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument,

The Group measures the Ioss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses:

— Bank bhalances, other receivable, due from a related party and other financial assets, for
which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected fife of the finandal
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating expected credit losses. The Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognized a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers
reascnable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cast or
effort. This includes both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking

information,

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly 1F it Is
maore than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

— The customer is unfikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security {If any is held); or

— The financial asset is more than 360 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
pecurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amoaunt of the asset.

Offsetting

Financial assets and lizbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is 3 legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and

settle the liabllity simultaneously,
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ial

Equity

Share capital is recorded at the value of proceeds received towards interest in share capital
of the Parent company.

Fair value measurement
The Group discloses the fair valee of financial instruments measured at amortised cost,

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

& Inthe principal market for the assat or liability or
s In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability i5 measured using assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that the market

participants act in their best economic Interests.

SIGMIFICANT JUDGMEMNTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.

Impalrmment

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In
the absence of such Indications, no further action is taken. |f such indications do exist, an
analysis of each asset is undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and, if this is
below its carrying amount, 8 provision is made.

The Group applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of financial
assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or Lifetime expected credit losses
depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect
expected credit losses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis,
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Leases

Determining the lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
sxercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases 1o lease the assets for additional years.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
opticn to rengw, The Group considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise {or not to exercise] the option to renew.

Discounting of lease poymnents

The lease payments are discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate (“IBRY),
which Is eguivalent to 6% to 7.77%, due to the absence of implicit rates in the lease
contracts.

Management has applied judgments and estimates to determine the IBR at the transition
date, using borrowing rates that certain financial institutions would charge the Group
against financing the different types of assets it leases over different terms and different
ranges of values. IBR is further adjusted for Group’s specific risk, term risk and underlying
assel risk. Majority of the keases are present in the UA.E. and accordingly no adjustrment for
the economic environment was deemed required.

Investments in subsidiaries

Management considers that it has de-facto control over Cleanmax Engineering (Thallamd)
Company Limited even though it does not hold 100% voting rights. The investment is made
by the Parent company and partly through one of the legal entities in Thailand, who is acting
as a nominee shareholder on behalf of the Parent company. There 5 no history of other
sharehokders forming a group to exercise their votes collectively.

Investments in joint arrangemeants

Management considers that it has joint control over Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Assel Co
W.LL wherein it holds 50% of the voting rights. Based on the contractual arrangements,
unanimous consent is required from all the parties o the arrangement for all relevant

activities.
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The Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co W.L.L has been structured as a limited liability
company and provides the parties to the arrangement with rights to the net assats of the
limited lability company under the arrangement. Consequently, the investment is classified

a5 a joint venturea.

Recognition of revenue and allocation of transaction price

identification of performance obiigations

The Group determined that the sale of eguipment and installation services are provided as a
single companent to customers and accordingly It becomes single performance obligation in
respect of the services being performed. The equipment and installation are highly
interdependent or highly interrelated as the Group will not be able to transfer the
equipment if the customer declined installation services.

Determime timing of satisfoction of performance obligation

Contract revenue i recognised over time as performance obligations are fulfilled in
accordance with IFRS 15 =Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The timing of revenue
recognition 15 subject to judgement surrounding the costs expected to be incurred in
completing the work, as revenue on contracts Is recognised on a percentage completion
basis.

6. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Koy assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Carrying values of property, plant and egquipmeant

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be
obtained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at
the end of the assets” estimated wseful lves.,

Impairment
Assessments of net recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are based on
assumptions regarding future cash flows expected to be received from the related assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates. The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 4(z).
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Inventory provisions

Management regularly undertakes a review of the Groups inventory, stated at AED
4. 583,006 (previous vear AED 4,972,343) {including goods-In-transit) in order to assess the
likaly realization proceeds, taking into account purchase amd replacement prices,
technological changes, age, likely obsolescence, the rate at which goods are being sold and
the physical damage. Based on the assessment assumptions are made as to the level of

provisioning reguired.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liakilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is depandent
upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary
differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Group considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making
this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry
forward pericd are reduced.

Staff end-of-service benefits

The entities in LAE of the Group compute the provision for the lability to staff end-of-service
benefits stated at AED 250,608 (previous year AED 169,567, assuming that all employees
were to leave as of the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that no significant
difference would have arisen had the liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary
inflation and discount rates are likely to have approximately equal and opposite effects,

Project cost to complete estimates

AL the end of each reporting perlod, the Group 15 required to estimate costs to complete
contracts. Estimating costs to complete on such contracts requires the Group to make
estimates of future costs to be incurred, based on work to be performed beyond the end of
the reporting pericd. The Group wuses internal quantity surveyors together with project
managers to estimate the costs to complete for construction contracts. Factors such as
changes in material prices, labour costs, defects liability costs and other costs are included in
the contract cost estimates based on best estimates of the contract progress and remaining
works at the year-end. These estimates also include the cost of potential claims by
contractors and the cost of meeting other contractual obligations to the customers,

Contract variations and claims

Variatlons orders are accounted for prospectively based on the nature and price of
additional products and services requested through the variation orders. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, no amount of claim recognised as part of the revenue {previous year
AED Mil).
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The selling price includes variable consideration {Including clalms, re-measurable contract
values and discounts) in the transaction price to which it expects to be entitled from the
inception of the contract. The amount of variable consideration is restricted to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Going concern assassment

The Group has incurred a loss of AED 2,250,351 for the year ended 31 March 2024 and at
that date, the Group's losses aggregated to AED 14,308 824, Motwithstanding this fact, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a gaing concern basis
as the management of the Group believes that the future operations of the Group will
generate sufficient profits and cashflows, the shareholder has resolved to continue its
operations in the General Meeting held,
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(@

()
ic)

{4)

This represents the right-to-use of solar equipment and rooftop Installation on lease from 5
to 25 years located in Thailand. The assets are under the books of Cleanmax Energy
(Thailand] Co, Ltd and Cleanmax IHQ [Thailand} Company Limited,

Capital work-in-progress relating to construction of solar equipment are disclosed in note 37.
Solar equipment with a cost of AED 60,763,200 {previous year AED 19,912,906) and a net
book value of AED 57,657,054 (previous year AED 18,757,749} provide security to the third-
party bank loan [refer note 21).

2029 2023
AED AED
INVESTMENTS
Investment in associate
Cleanmax Alpha LeaseCo F2C0, Dubai™
Share capital 204,000 180,000
Fair value adjustment due to loss of contral 15,685,200 15,685,200
Additional investment acquired in current year'! 9,176,000 L
Share of profit (cumulative) 1,342,407 989,254
26,407,607 16,854, 454

Im current year, Cleaniax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO purchased additional 24 shares of AED 1,000
gach share from Marvel Bioscience FZE amounting AED 9,176,000 which resulted in increase
in stake of the Company by 4.8% i.e. from 36% to 40.8%.

The nature of investment in an associate is as follows:

MName of associate Principal activities Country of Proportion (%) of
incorporation ownership interest
- 2024 2023
Cleantax Alpha Solar energy systems LIAE 40.80% £
LeaseCo FZCO!™ rental

Agpregated summary financial information relating to the associates are as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED
Assets 130,955,351 132,573,214
Liabilities 51,958,399 84,477,164
Revenue 16,472,578 12,887 693
Profit 900,902 2,157,121
Met assets of an associate 48,996,952 45,096,050
Interest im an associate 40.80% 3%
Share of profit from an associate 353,153 776,562
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024 23
AED AED
INVESTRMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
50% interest in Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co W.LL Bohrain

Share capital at cost 49,573 -
Additional investments during the year 1,337,182 -
Share of profits 29,581 -
Total investment In jolnk ventures —l,diﬁ;i_a'ﬁ » -

The nature of investments in joint ventures is as follows:

Mam af Jalnt weniure Principal Counlry %ol share %% of
activitins of capital hald  benefical cwmership
b L i

2008 AR3 02 23
Ranting and operatiana|
leasing of machinany and Bahrmin 50 50 =0 50

equipment

Kanao Cleanma Renswables fagey
o W.L.L, Bahrain

Kanoo Cleanmax Repewables Asset Co W.LL and Cleanmax Solar MENA FZICO are jointly
controlled with equal beneficial interest between the venturers. There are no guoted market
prices available for its shares,

Apgregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co
W.LL, not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the Company is as
follows:

Summarised statement of financial position

2024 2023
AED AED
Mon-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment 2,263,080 -
Current assets ' -
= Trade and other receivables 196,586
- Cash and cash eguivalent 2,819,865 -
Current assets 3,016,451
Total assets 5,279,531 -
Current Habilities 2,476,700 -
Total liabilities 2,476,700 -
Met assets 2,802,831 -
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Summariszed statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2024 2023

AED AED
Revenue 263,326 -

Direct costs (133,118) -
Gross profit 130,208 -
Administrative expenses (71,047) -
Met profit 59,161 £

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
A reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of

investmant in joint venture is as follows:

Met assets

Total assets (i} 5,279,531 -

Total liabilities (i) 2,476,700 =

{i-ii) 2,802,831 3

Intarest in Joint venture (%) S0% -

Int@rest in Joint venture 1,416,336 -

Carrying value 1,416,336 -

TOTAL (A+B) 27,823,943 16,854,454

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Lang-term loan to a related party & 13,424,867 14,924 867

Other financial assets at amortised cost:

Margin deposits™ 2,380,368 99,000
15,805,235 15,023 B&7

Disclosed under;

Mon-current financial assets 13,424,867 14,924 B67

Current financial assets 2,380,368 93,000
15,805,235 15,023 867

This represents loans given o associate, Cleaniax Alpha LeaseCo FZCOD AED 13,424 867
(previous year AED 14,.924.2867). The lpans are unsecured and without fixed repayment
schedule, These loans carry a 6% per annum of interest (previous year 6% p.a.).
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ic)

11.

12

& reconciliation of the movements in the long-term loan to a related party is as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Dpening balance 14,924,867 24,883 674
Loan repaid during the vear (1,500,000 19,558 807)
Closing balance 13,424,867 14,924 B67

Interest receivables from the abowve loans amounting to AED BAL,905 [previous year AED
344,359) is classified under other recelvables.

Represents deposits are held as security against bankers’ letter of guarantee issued by the
Group (note 38).

INVENTORIES

Project materials 4,583 066 4155423

Goods-in-transit - 816,920
4,583,066 4972343

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B,165 866 1,593,781

Deposits 750,741 190,818

Other recaivables 879,401 500,355
7,896,008 2,684,954

The Group does not hold any collateral against trade receivables (previous year AED Nil),

An age analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows:

Mot past due 2,843,792 -
0 —50 days past due 1,804,154 1987722
91 = 180 days past dug 1,384,503 -
KMore than 180 days past due 133377 B,059
6,165,866 1,993,781
OTHER CURREMT ASSETS
Prepayments 345,543 59,354
Current tax receivables 487,534 .
Advance to vendors 423 6599 2,115,938
Staff advances 52,989 175,033
VAT receivahble (net) 2,042 506 1,786 078
3,352,271 4,669,403
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13. RELATED PARTIES
The Group enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as containad in International Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such
transactions to be in the normal course of business and are at prices determined by the
managament

Related parties comprise the parent and ultimate parent company/shareholder, associate,
joint venture, directors, key management personnel.

At the reporting date, significant balances with related parties were as follows:

Parent Associate Joint Director/key Total Tatal
COMMpany vEnture FrIENAEement 2024 2023
perssnnel
AED AED AED AED AED BED
Long-lerm laan (o a
related party 13,434 867 . 13,425 BT
14,924,867 - - 14,924 857
Imvestmieni = 26,407,607 1,416,336 - 27,823,943
- 15,854 454 - - 16,854,454
Included in trade and -
other receivables - 3,655,870 - 3,655,870
-- 344,359 - - 34,355
Contract assets - 377,545 - - 377 545
- TT0ATE - - TrD.a7s
Contract lzbilities -- 2,051.828 - - 2,051,828
- 3,738,442 - - 3,738,442
Induded In other -
current lahility - - - -
2 5,640,106 = = 5,540, 106
Duie from a related - -
party i 3,405 B55 3,405 655
236,444 - -- - 236,444
Due o a related party 3,823,884 - - = 3,823,884
L0LERZ, 463 - - FTE.ESY 11,158,361
Loans fram . . =
sharehobder 28,121,857 28,121,857
13,365,488 - - - 18,365,488
Guarantes receed 7,350,000 - - - 7,350,000
7,350,000 e . - 7,350,000
Provision fior stafl end-
ofservice benefits - - - - -
- - - 8,186 8,186
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All balances except guarantee received are unsecured and are expected to be settled in cash.
Repayments and other terms ane set out in notes 20, 21 and 36.

Significant tramsactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Parant Assoclate  Director/key Total Tatal
management 2024 2023
persennel
AEL AED BED AED AED
Aevenue - 235,115,112 - 25,115,112
- 18,220,957 - 18,229,957
Direct cosis 4,230,753 4,230,293
22,254,064 - - 22,254 064
Director's remuneration - - 573,600 574,600
- - 869,957 869,997
Interest income - B74,575 - 874,575
= 1508253 - 1,508,253
Finance cosls 1,516,083 - - 1,516,048
1,498,686 - - 1,40 G8E
Expenses recharged to
a related party 125,000 - - 125,000
Expenses recharged from
a refated party 189,784 - - 189,784
167,036 Bdl, 70T - 208,33

The Group also receives funds from/provides funds to related parties as working capital
facilities at fixed rates of interest,

Certain administrative related services are avalled from a related party as per agreed rates.

2024 2023
AED AED
14, CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACLT LIABILITES
Contract assets relating to costs incurred
to fulfil a contract 7,158,311 6,647,982
Dhisclosed as:
Current contract assets 7,158,311 6,647 982
Cantract liabilities 2,680 624 7,765,142
Disclosed as:
Current contract liabilities 2,689,624 7,765,142
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16,

Mame

2024 2023
AED AED
CASH AND CASH EQLIVALENTS
Cash on hand 7:.134 24,006
Bank balances in current accounts 9,893,838 17,836,784
9,900,972 17,870,790
SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and paid up:
24,830 shares of AED 1,000 each (previous year
16,877 shares of AED 1,000 2ach) 24,830,000 16,877,000
MName Mo. of shares AED
Clean Mayx Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd., India 24,803 24,830,000

During the year vide an amendment to the memorandum of association, the Company has
increased their share capital by issuance of additional 7,953 shares to CleanhMax Enviro
Energy Solutions Private Ltd. The shareholders as at 31 March 2024 and at 31 March 2023
and their interests as at that date in the share capital of the Company were as follows:

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
Na. of AED Hof Sof Nooof %of %of
Shares holding profit  Shares holding profit
sharing sharing

Cleaniiany r E
2an Enviro NEergy 24,830 24,830,000 100% 100% 16877 16377000 100% 100%

solutions Private Lid,

1T,

(=)

24,830 24.E30,000 100% 100% 16,877 16377000 100% 100%
2024 2023
AED AED
SHARE PRENMIUM
Opening balance 19,830,420 BR7.440
Premium on additional shares issued during the year 24,473,361 19,019,100
Transaction costs (111,380) (76,120)
Closing balance 44,192,401 19,830,420

Share premium of AED 44,379.801 (net transaction cost of AED 242,060} arising out of

18,280 shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2024
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20,

(a}

()

SHARE APPLICATION MOMEY
Dpening balance

Share application money on additional shares

Allotment of shares

MNON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Opening balance

Share application money for issuance of

additional shares
Acquisition of minority stake
Closing balance

This represents share of Cleanmax Engineering [Thailand) Company Limited, Thailand.

LOAMNS FROM SHAREHOLDER
Opening balance

Receipts during the year (net)
Interest credited

Interest paid

Loan paid during the year
Closing balance

2024 2023
AED AED
14,775,948 9,017,200
- 34,796,848
(14,775,348) (29,038,100)
155,995 153,000
- 2,946
(153,000)
2,996 155,996
18,365,488 24,435 061
9,200,000 14,000,000
1,516,088 1,498 686
(959,719) {1,506,259)
- (19,952,000)
28,121 857 18,355,488

This represents interest bearing loans received from the shareholder with a maturity of one
to three years from the date of receipt of loans as at reporting date.

Below are the loans details;

- Loan amounting to AED 3,426,204 is repayable within a year and subject to an interest

rate at 6% per annum.

- Loan amounting to AED 15,047,123 is subject to an interest rate at 6% per annum having

maturity il ¥ September 2025,

- Loan amounting to AED 169,754 is subject to an interest rate at 10% per annum having

maturity thl 24 November 2025.

= Loan amounting to AED 9 478,776 is subject to an interest rate at 6% per annum having

maturity til 3 July 2026,
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21.

22,

Disclosed as:
MNan-current portion
Current portion

LONG-TERM EORROWINGS

Long-term loan from third party
Less: Current portion = loan from third party (note 24)

The mavements for loan from third party is as undar:

Opening balance
Amount recovered
Amount advanced as loan
Closing balance

2024 2023

AED AED
24,605 653 17,701,527
3,426,204 563,961
28,121,857 18,365,488
43,689,542 14,519,493
{2,042,300) (668,360)
41,647,242 13,851,133
14,519,493 15,594,515
- (1,075,022)
29,170,049 -
43,689,542 14,519,493

% 0On 7 July 2023 and 1 September 2023, the Group had entered into a long-term loan
agreement with a lender amounting to AED 18,622,123 and AED 12,486,007, carrying
interest rate of 6.63% and 7.85% per annum respectively. The principal amount and
interest are repayable half-yearly in June and December every year. The last instalment
of both the loans is due on June 2027,

o On 19 June 2020 and 21 March 2022, the Group had entered into a long-term koan
agreement with a lender amounting to AED &,854.134 and AED B740,381, carrying
interest rate of 5.B0% and 5.29% per annum respectively. The principal amount and
interest are repayable half-yearly in June and December every year. The last instalment
of both the loans s due on June 2025,

The Group has mortgaged power generation eguipment to secure these loans [refer note

Tichl.

PROVISION FOR STAFF END-OF-5ERVICE-BENEFITS

Opening balance

Provision for the year
Transfer from a related party
Transfer to a related party
Paid during the year

Closing balance
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3.

24,

2024
AED
LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities for long-term lease of solar
equipment and rooftop installation 1,106,293

2023
AED

Disclosed In the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Mon-current liabilities 9724955
Current liabilities 133,338
1,106,293

A recanciliation of the movemeants in the lease fliahilities is as follows;

At 1 April -
addition made during the year 1,178,951
Finance cost on lease liabilities (note 33) 45,870
Payments made during the year {118,568)
At 31 March 1,106,293

A maturity anakysis of undiscounted lease liabilities is as follows:

0 -3 months 133,338
Presented as current liabilities 133,338
1 year— 25 years 1,371,262
Total 1,504,600

Recondliation of undiscounted lease labdities to the lease labilities as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Lease payments due 1,504,600
Less: Finance oosl on [eases [398.307)
Disclosed in the statement of financial position 1,106,293

SHORT-TERM BORROWIMNGS
Current portion of long-term loans {note Z1) 2,042,300

68, 360
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W

il

25,

26,

P

A maturity analysis of loan from third party are as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
1- 3 months 412,127 134,872
3 months — 1 year 1,630,173 533488
Total 2,042,300 562,360

Bank facilities from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank guarantee of AED 7,350,000
{previous year AED 7,350,000) received from the parent company.

The bank borrowings are subject to certain financial covenants such as minimum monthly
account turnover routing (excluding any TR / LBD credits) of AED 500,000.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 3,743,494 1,000,542
Areruals 6,225,898 1,909,652
Accrued interest 1,016,941 279,028
Other payables 21,564 313,748

11,007,897 3,502,970

The entire trade and other payables are due for payment within one year from the reporting date.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance for goods and services 242 428 5,640,106
Employee related payables - 1578

242428 5,641,684
MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Group continues as a
Eving concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on their investment
commensurate with the level of rigk assumed.

Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the consolidated statement of financial
pasition along with loans from the shareholder, share premium and amounts due to/from
related parties. Debt comprises total ameunts owing to third parties, net of cash and cash
gquivalents.

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of the
bank facilities availed. Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC (the subsidiary company)
has accurmulated losses excesding 50% of its share capital, the shareholders of the subsidiary
company have resolved to continue with the operations of the subsidiary company. The
Group has complied with all the capital requirements to which it is subject.
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28.

29,

Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a shareholder are
retained in the business according to the business requirements to maintain the capital at

desired levels.

REVEMLIE

The Group generates revenue from the transfer of services over time. The disaggregated
revenue from contracts with customers by geographical segments, type of services and
timing of revenue recognition is presented below. The management believes that this best
depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the Group’s revenue and cash flows.

2024 2023
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
=  LLAE 38,273,833 37,019 266
- Thailand 11,892,008 2,566,573
= Bahrain 2,766,120 -
52,937,952 39,585,839
iajor good,service lines
Construction/installation projects
= Rewvenue from prajects 47,716,811 35,213 566
Sale of goods
- Sale of energy 2,953,803 2,353,511
Operation and maintenance
= Dperating maintenance 2,267,348 2,018,762
52,937,962 39,585,839
Timing of revenue recognition
- Overtime 52,937,962 39,585 839
CO5T OF SALES
Purchases (Including direct expenses) 41,044,740 43,837,057
Depreciation {note 7] 2,058,880 B57, 786
43,103,620 43,454,843
OTHER INCOME
Credit balances written back 29,927 =
Miscellaneous income 128,860 890,776
158,787 890,776
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2024 2023
AED AED
31. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

staff salaries and benefits'™ 4,857,140 3,958,544
Staff end-of-service benefits 88,705 124,278
Expenses relating to short-term leases 100,433 597981
Commission and referral fees 447,399 225098
Legal and professional fees 500,765 1,536,750
Recruitment expenses 204,350 114,253
Travel and convevance 329,176 200,065
Depreciation [note 7) 50,841 29,9949
Other expenses 2,713,140 836,268
9,292,009 7,223,236

{a] This includes director's remuneration of AED 579,600 {previous vear AED 369,997,

32, INTEREST INCOME

On loan to a related party 871,128 1,508,253
On bank deposits 46,678 6,575
817 806 1,514 828

33. FINANCE COSTS

On lease liabilities 45,870 --
On bank overdrafts 210,738 391,591
0n loan from a third party 2,208 280 757,438
Onloan from a shareholder 1,316,088 1,498 686

3,081 976 2,647,715

34. DEFRECIATION
Depreciation on property plant and equipment

(note 7)% 2,109,721 GET7 7B

Allocated to:

Cost of sales (note 29) 2,058,880 657,786

Administrative and selling expenses {note 31) 50,841 29,9049
2,108,721 687,785

a) Includes depreciation on Right-of-Use assets of AED 104,404 {previous year AED nil],
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024 2023
AED AED
35. IMCOME TAX
Current tax expense
Current tax on profits for the yvear 270,035 -
Taxes paid in current year 757,569 -

36, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments

Classification and fair values
The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities
are as follows:

At amortised cost

2024 2023

AED AED
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 7,856,008 2,684 054
Due from a related party 3,495,655 236,444
Other financial assets {current and non-current) 15,805,235 15,023,867
Cash and cash equivalents 9,900,972 17,870,750

37,097 870 35,816,055
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings 41,647,242 13,851,133
Short-tarm bormowings 2,042 300 G688, 3660
Trade and other pavables 11,007,897 3,502,570
Due to a related party 3.873,884 11,159,361
Lease labilities (current and nen-current} 1,106,293
Loans from shareholder (current and non-current) 28,121,857 18365 488
87,749,473 47,547,312

Fair value meosurement and disclosures

The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at
each reporting date.

The fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, trade and other receivables, other financial
assets [current), due from a related party, short-term borrowings, trade and other payables,
current ease liabilities, due to a related party and loans from shareholder {current portion)
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments
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The following methods and assumptions were used to determine the fair values of other
financial assets/liabilities:

Mon-current financial assets are evaluated by the Group using valuation techmigues. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible nputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk
factors, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks characteristics. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of provisians, are not
materially different from their fair values,

Fair values of loans from shareholder are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debts on similar items, credit risk and remaining maturities, As at
the reporting date, the carrying amount of such liability, is not materially different from its
fair value.

Fair value of non-current lease liabilities and long-term borrowings is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar items, credit
risk and remaining maturities. As at the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such
liabilitles, are not materially different from their fair values.

Financlal risk management

Risk monagement objectives

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurernent and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Group's continuing profitability. The Group's
risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows by
minimizing the exposure to financial markets,

The management conducts and operates the business in & prudent manner, taking into
account the significant risks to which the business is or could be exposed.

The primary risks to which the business is exposed, which are unchanged from the previous
year, comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks (including currency risks, cash flow
interest rate risks and fair value Interest rate risks).

The management of the Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an
abligation and cause the third party to incur a financial loss.
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Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular
manitoring and follow-up,

Financial assets that potentially expose the Group to concentrations of credit risk comprise
principally bank accounts, trade and other receivables, due from a related party and other

financial assets.
The Group's bank accounts are placed with high credit guality financial institutions.

The management assesses the credit risk arising from trade receivables and other
receivables, loan to related party and due from a related party taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment individual risk

Hrnits are determined.

Armounts due from a related party relate to transactions arsing in the nomal course of
buginess with minimal credit risk. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the group has not
recorded any allowance for expected credit losses of the amounts owned by the related
parties (2023: AED nil),

Al the reporting date, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk from such recehables
situated outside the UAE is as fallows:

L2024 2023
AED AED
Trade receivables
hdiddle East countries 2,766,120 --

At the reporting date 99% of trade receivables was due from four custormers {previous year
95 32% due from two customers).

At the reporting date 100% of due from a related party are due from a related party
(previows year 98.75% due from a related party).

At the reporting date, there is no significant concentration of credit risk from any particular
industry as the Group's customers are from diverse industries.

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade
receivables and contract assets, Loss rates are calculated using a flaw rate” method based on
the probabllity of a receivable progressing through successive stages of delinguency to
write-off. Flow rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based an
the following common credit risk characteristics — geographic region, age of customer
relationship and type of product purchased.
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Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is
required under IFRS 9,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds, The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and fimancial abilities.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitiss when due, under both normal and stressed
conditlons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's
reputation. The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and labilities, The Group limits its
liguidity risk by ensuring adequate bank facilities are available.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities
at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Less than one year One Lo live years Totad
2023 2032 2023 2022 1023 B2y
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Leng-term borrowings - — 41547242 13,851,133 21,647,242 13,851,133
Shast-term borrowengs 2,042,300 568,360 - - 2,042 300 GEE, 3RO
Lease liabilities 133,338 s 1371262 — 1,504 500 =
Tramle and other
payables 11,007,537 3,502,970 - T 11,007,837 3,502,970
Lorans from dhanabhld sr 3,426,204 663,961 24, 6095653 17,701,527 IE, 171 857 1E 365 488
Dua to a related party 3,323,884 11,158,361 - 3,823,884 11,158,351
H0,433 623 15 994 65 67,714,157 31,552,660 BB, 147 780 47547 917
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as forelgn currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instrument. The objective of market risk management Is 10 manage and contral
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns,

Currency risk
Currency risk ks the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

There are no significant currency risks as substantialiy all financial assets and financial

liabilities are denominated in UAE Dirhem or US Dallar to which the Dirham & fixed, except
for the following:
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Il

38.

39.

2024 2023
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
Great British Pownd 3,603 3,540
Trade payable
Thai Bluat T42.526 212,217
Interast rate risk

Intersst rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate becavse of
changes in market interest rates.

Loan from third party and loans from shareholder are subject to fised interest rates at levels
generally obtained in the UAE and are therefore exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

OTHER CONTRACTED COMITEMENTS

For comstruction of solar equipment (note 7] 28,179,509 32,824,701
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Bankers' letter of guarantee (note 9} 3,408,301 3,541,583

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Previous yvear's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them

comparable to those of the current period.

CORPORATE TAX

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released the Federal Decree-Law Mo, 47 of
2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses (the CT Law’] to enact a Federal
Corporate Tax ('CT’) regime in the UAE. The CT Law is effective for the financial years
beginning on or after 1 June 2023, Decisipn No. 116 of 2022 specifies the threshold of
Income {as AED 375,000) over which a corporate tax of 9% would apply and accordingly, the
CT Law is now considered to be substantively enacted.

For the Group, current taxes shall be accounted as appropriate in the consolidated financial
statements for the accounting pericd beginning 1 April 2024, In accordance with [AS 12
Income Taxes, the related deferred tax accounting impact has been considered for the

financial year ended 31 March 2024,
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Based on the information available to date, the Group has assessed the deferred tax
implications for the year ended 31 March 2024 and, after considering its interpretations of
applicable tax law, official pronouncements, cabinet decisions and ministerial decisions
{especially with regard to transition rules), it has been concluded that deferred tax

implications are not expected to be material,

The Group shall continee to monitor critical Cabinet Decisions to determine the impact on
the Group, from deferred tax perspective.

For CLEANMAXN SOLAR MENA FZCD

P

DIRECTOR
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Emall dubai@pifuae.com
wwrw.pkfuae.com
INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO [the "Company"),
which comprise the statement of finandial position as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staterments give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basls for Dpinion

We conducted owr audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Finoncial Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants {IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (U.AE), and we have fulfilled
vur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the (E5BA Code. We
belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our cpinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2(a) to the financial statements, which states that these financial
staterments relate to separate financial statements of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are required to be presented in
accordance  with Intermational Fnancial Reporting Standard 10: Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented separately. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chorged with Governance for the Finandal Statements
mManagement is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFR3s, and for their compliance with applicable provision of the
Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

comtinued...
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{continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is nat a guarantes that an audit conducted Im accordance with 1545 will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsg:

= [|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, ar the override of internal control,

* (Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectivensss of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
actounting and, based on the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue a5 a going concern. If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are Inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

cowtinued...
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{continued)

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that pives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among Other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we Identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We further confirm that the financial statements comply with the applicable provisions of the

Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021.

For PKF

Saranga Lalwani
Partner

Registration no. 5368
Disbai

United Arab Emirates
& May 2024
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Motes 2024 2023
AED AED
ASSETS
Morn-current assets
Praperty, plant and eguipment [ 94 559
Investments 7 76,359,211 38,480,149
Other financial assets a 15,164,045 18,941,293
91,523,350 57,422,001
Current assets
Inventories g = 3,519,103
Trade and other receivables 10 6,669,697 2,731,853
Other current assets 11 311,625 131,426
Due from related parties 12 8,882,219 9,572,270
Contract assets 13 2,074,642 1,690,315
Other financial assets a 54,000 55,000
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,062,874 6,525,399
19,065,057 24,225,406
Total assets 110,588,407 81,647 407
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Equity funds
Share capital 15 24,830,000 16,877,000
share premium 16 44,192,401 19,830,420
Share application money i7 - 14,775,848
Retained earnings 8,240,421 8,051,213
Total equity funds 77,262,822 29,534,581
Mon-current liabilities
Loans from shareholder 18 24,685,653 17,701,527
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits 19 89,172 71,221
24,784 825 17,772,748
Current lizbilities
Loans from shareholder 1B 3,426,204 663,961
Due to related parties 12 1,954,039 1,138,531
Trade and other pavables 21 2,191,155 589,581
Other current liabilities 22 331,566 325,494
Contract liabilities 13 37,7596 1,622,511
B,540,760 4,340,078
Total liabilities 33,325,585 22,112,826
Total equity and lizbilities 110,588,407 81,647,407

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3,

| confirm that i am responsible for these financial statements, including selecting the accounting
pelicies and making the judgments underlying them. | confirm that | have made available all
relevant accounting records and information for their compilation.

Approved and authorised for issue by the shareholder on 29 Apsil 2024 and signed an their behalf
by Ms. Shivani Agrawal,

For CLEANMAX B MENA FZCo

//"

DIRECTOR
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Notes 2024 2023
AED AED
Revenue 24 23,232,564 32,725,579
Direct costs 25 (21,189,553) {34, EEI*E'LBE-SII
Gross profit/{loss) 2,043,011 (1,874,276)
Other income 2B 64,959 659,926
Share of profit from associate 7ia) 353,153 776,562
Share of profit from joint venture 7 (d) 29,581 -
Administrative expenses 27 {1,581,227) (1,462,776)
Interast income 28 1,005,118 1,696,720
Finance costs 29 [1,765,387) (1,777,508)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 185,208 {2,571,442)
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive inoome for the year - -
TOTAL COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 189,208 (2,571,442]

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants.
The report of the independent auditor Is set forth an pages 1 1o 3.
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CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Balance at 1 April 2022

Share appication money on
additional shares

Aflotment of shares

Trantacthan cotty

Total compreshensine imcorme
for the year

Batance at 31 March 2023

Allotment of shares

Transaclion costs

Tatal eomprehensive incoma
fer thie yesar

Ealance at 31 March 2024

Share Share Share Retained Total
capital premium application earnings
Frirey
AED AED AED AED AED
5,858,000 BE7,440 9,017,200 10,622,655 27,385,295
— - 5,758,748 3 5,758,748
10,015,000 19,019,100 - - 29,038,100
{76,120} - = {16,120
= v = (2571.442)  (2,571,442)
16,877,000 19830420 14,775,948 8,051,213 589,534 581
7,553,000 24,473 361 (14, 775248} - 17,650,413
- {111,380) (111,380}
- . =) 189,208 189,208
24,830,000 44,192,401 - s,.zm,q:u‘ 77,262 822

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The repart of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3,
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CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Finance costs
Credit balamce written back
Share of profit from associate
share of profit from joint venture
Provigion for staff end-of-service benefits

Changes in:
= Imventorias
Trade and other receivables
Cither current assets
Contract assets
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
- Contract llabilities
Staff end-of-service benefits paid
Interest paid
MWet cash used in operating activities
Cazh flows from investing activities
Imvastments in subsidiaries
Imvestments in joint venture
Investment in associates
Receipts from/|{payments to) related parties {net)
Loan repaid by a related party (net)
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets [net)
Interest received
Met cash used in investing activities

L]

[

Cash flows from financial activities
Receipts from share application money
Issue of share capital

Receipts of share premium money {nat)
Payment of transaction costs

Loan availed from/{repayment of loan to) shareholder (net)

Receipts from/ipayments to] a related party {net)
Met cash from financing activities

Met (decrease)/increase in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year [note 14)

2024 2023
AED AED
189,208 (2,571,442}
465 1,357
(1,005,118) (1,696,720)
1,765,387 1,777,598
{29,927) -
(353,153) {776,562)
(29,927) =
17,951 57,426
555,232 (3,208,343}
3,519,103 2,137,497
(3,596,796) (831,625]
(180,199) [27,116)
(384,327) (726,245)
1,631,501 (6,210, 708)
6,072 194,934
(924,715) (1,424,911)
- (182,493)
{1,209,018) (1,885,171)
(643,147) (12,163,681)
(26,908,573) (11,403 840)
(1,386,755) =
{9, 200,000) -
690,051 (8,247,161)
3,777,248 7,161,771
{3,000} 1,074,322
664,110 2,012 456
(32,373,019) (9,402,452)
. 14,796,848
7,953,000 .
9,697,413 -
{111,380) {76,120)
9,200,000 (5,952,000)
815,508 {1,360,513)
27,554,541 27,408,215
(5,462,525) 5,442,082
6,525,399 683,317
1,062,674 G.a25,399

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1to 3.
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CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2024

b)

cl

b}

LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY

CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the "Compamy”) is a free zone Company with limited
liahbility incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates under Implementing Regulation Na.
1/598 ssued by the Dubal Airport Free Zone Authority pursuant to Law No. 2 of 1996 and its
amendment Mo. (2) of 2000 and amendment Law Mo, (25) of 2009 [repealed by Dubai
Airport Free done Authority Company Regulations 2021). The Company was registered on 23
May 2017 under a commercial license no, 3348 and commenced its operations since then,
The registered address is 2E MO32, Dubai Alrport Free Zone, Dubai, U.AE

The Company's principal activity during the year was of solar energy systems & components
trading and power generation, transmission & distribution equipment,

The parent and ultimate parent company is Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd.,
India. The management and control are vested with Mz, Shvani Agrawal, Director and Mr
kuldeep lain, Director, Indian mationals. Mr. Kuldeep lain is the ultimate beneficiary owner of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB] and
which are effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and the
requirements of the Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021.

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are required to
be presented in accordance with [International Financial Reporting Standard 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements are presented separataly.

Basis of measuremant
The financial staternents are prepared using historical cost,

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acoquire the asset or
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
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CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

d)

When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Financial statements are prepared on a
gning concern basls unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
ceate aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so0.

Adaoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Stendards, amendments, improverments ond interpretations effective for the current year,
The following standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations which became
effective for current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company's financial
staterments:

IFRS 17 = Insurance Contracts

& Amendments to IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

= Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

e Amendments to A5 1 and [FRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

& Amendments to |45 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

* Amendments to 145 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

¢ Amendments to 1A% 12 - International Tax Refarm — Pillar Twa Model Rules

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective ond not early adopted

The following amendments, improvements and interpretations that are assessed by
management as likely to have an impact on the financial statements, have been issued by
the |ASE prior to the date the financlal statements were authorised for issue, but have not
been applied in these financial statements as their effective dates of adoption are for future
atcounting periods.

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (1 January 2024}

e Amendments to 1AS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangemendt (1 January 2024)

= Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback |1 January 2024)

s Amendments to 1AS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability (1 Janwary 2025)

o Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets betweean an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture. The amendments address the confiict between IFRS 10
and 1A% 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold to an associate or
a joint wenture [The IASE postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely -
Early adoption is permitted)

e [FES 51 General Reguirements for Disclosure of Sustainability Related Financial
Information and IFR5 52 Climate Related Disclosures (Effective wpon adoption by
applicable regulatory)
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

e

)

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (“AED") which is also the Company's
functional currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have besn consistently applied, are

as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprediation and
impairment losses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, Is depreciated
from the date the asset is available for use until it is derecognised, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Furniture, fixture and office equipment 5 years

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset’s carnying amount or recognised as a separate
asset as appropriate only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with
the expenditure will flow o the Company and such cost can be measured reliably. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. When significant
parts of proparty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised.

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial
periodin which they are incurred.

an assessment of depreciation methed, useful lives and residual values is undertaken at
each reporting date and, where material, if there is a change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustment is made to the depreciation charge.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. Thesa are recognised within ‘other operating income/administrative expenses’ in

profit or loss,

Impairment of tangible assets

At each reporting date, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
logs, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset |s estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss If amy. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the acquirer estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

t}

d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit] is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit] is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An Impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at @ revalued amount, in which case the impairment boss Is
treated as a revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amaount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset [cash-generating unit) in
pricr years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amaunt, In which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Cormnpany exercises control, Conteol is achieved when
the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its invalement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The investment in subsidiaries Is accounted for at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Consplidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are presented
separately.

Investments in associates

Imcestments where the Company has significant influence but not control, penerally
accompanying a shareholding between 208 and 50% of the share capital of the investes
Company, are treated as associates and accounted for under the equity method of
accounting stating the imvestment initially at cost and adjusted for the Company's share of
the changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value.

Investments in joint arrangements

Investments in [oint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

fi

Bl

h)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contral of the
arrangement hawve rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint contral is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists enly when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing contraol,

5uch investments are treated as joint ventures and accounted under the equity method of
accounting stating the imvestment initially at cost and adjusted for the Group's share of the
changes in net assets of the investee company after the date of acquisition, and for any
impairment in value,

Share application money

The amount received as application money for issuance of equity shares in future has been
classified as share application money under equity. Further, the transaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application under equity.

Share premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as share
premium under equity, Further, the transaction costs relating to additional shares issues
deducted from the share premium under equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is arrived at using
the Weighted Average Cost [WAC) method and comprises invoice value plus applicable
landing charges less discounts. Met realisable value is based on estimated s=lling price less
any estimated cost of completion and disposal,

Goods-in-transit represents the inventory over which Company has legal title based on
terms of purchase, but which are physically not received at the Company's warghouse

Staff benefits

The Company provides staff end-of-service benefits to its non-UAE national employees as
per the applicable local laws. The entitlement to these benefits is based on the employees’
last drawn salary and length of services which is accrued over the period of employment.
Provision for staff end-of-services benefits are disclosad as non-current liability.

Provision is also made for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and air fare for eligible
employees as per the policy of the Company. Provision relating to annual leave and alr fare is
disclesed as current liability as employees are entitled to redeem these benefits at any point
of time after the reporting perlod.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

il

Revenue recognition
The Company is in the business of solar energy systems & components trading and power
generation, transmission & distribution equipment.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step madel

as set out in IFRS 15:

1. Identify the contracts with customers: & contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met.

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promiss in a contract with a customer to transfer a service to the customer,

3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promisad
services to a customer, excliding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obfigations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Cormpany will allocate the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
monsideration to which the Company expects to be entithed In exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

5. Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a
point in time or over time,

The Campany satisfies a performance cbligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of

the following criteria is met:

=  The customer simultaneously receives and consumeas the benefits provided by the
Company's performance as the Company performs; or

»  The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

« The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine
whether performance obligations are satisfied owver time or at a point in time in order to
determine the appropriate method of recognising revenue.

Saole of goods
The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognised at a

point In time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

k]

Soles of services
The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of services should be recognised over
time using input method,

Construction contracts

Contract revenues are recognised over a period of time, based on the stage of completion
of the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs
Incurred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs,

Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity,
Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for satisfying the
performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct
relationship between the input and the productivity. Claims are accounted for as income
when accepted by the customer.

Expected loss, if any, on contracts are recognised as expense in the period in which it is
foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract.

Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are
approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for modifications of
contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct
and whether the pricing is a standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are
accounted for on a8 cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted
for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or a5 a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract assets

A Contract asset is the right to consideratbon in exchange for services transferred to the
customer, If the Company perfarms by transferring goods ar services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
from the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to
receivable when the rights become uncanditional.

Contract liahilities

& contract lability is the oblization to transfer poods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a3 contract fiability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment Is due (whichever is earlier]. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue wien the Company performs under the contract,
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2024

m)

nj

o)

ol

g

Leases

As o lessee

The Company leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically annually but may have
edtension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

Short-termn leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(Le., those leases that have a lease term of 12 manths or less from the commenceme nt date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term |eases are recognised
a5 expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

iCash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank current accounts, bank deposits free of
encumbrance with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of deposit and
highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of
investment that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into UAE Dirhams at the rate of exchange
ruling on the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and llabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated inta UAE
Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to profit or loss,

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred
except those that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use (“gualifying asset”).
Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the related qualifying asset up to the date
the qualifying asset is ready for use.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation [legal or constructive)
85 a result of a past event, It s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

Page 15 of 41



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

5)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to settle the present obligation, it's carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required o setthe a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of recelvable can be measured
reliably.

Onerous contract

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs [i.e., the costs that the
Company cannat avold because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable
costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from faflure to
fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract
(i.e.; both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

Contingencies and commitments
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. &
contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable,

Value added tax

As per the Federal Decree-Law No. [08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), is charged at 5%
standard rate or (%% (a5 the case may be] on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the taxable person.

The Company charges and recovers Value Added Tax (VAT) on every taxahle supply and
deemed supply, in accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. Irrecoverable VAT
for which the Company cannot avail the oedit is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in costs of non-current assets, The Comparny also files its VAT returns
and compute the payable tax (which is output tax less input tax) for the allotted tax periods
and deposit the same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT returm and tax payment.
VAT receivable and VAT payable are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position as the Company has a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised
amounts and has the intentlon to settle the same on net basis.

Page 16 of 41



CLEANMAX 50LAR MENA FZCO

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

]

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the accounting base and the
tax base for the year and quantified using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted a5 on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements,
except when the deferred tax arises from the initlal recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liabllity in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects nelther accounting
nar taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forwand of
unused tax credits and wnused tax losses can be utilised, Deferred tax Habilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Current tax and ceferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recopnised amount and there is an intention to settle the
asset and liability on a net basis.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents ass=ts and Habilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/mon-current classification.

An asset s current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed In the normal operating
cycle.

# Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

«  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or,

&  Cash or cash eqguivalent unless restricked from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-curremnt.

A lability is current when:

» |tis expected to be settled in the normal operating oycle.

» ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

s |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or,

*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the hiability for at least twelve
manths after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

v

Financial instruments

Classification

On initlal recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at: amortised cost: fair
value through other comprehensive income — debt investment; fair value through other
comprehensive income — equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assets’
cantractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them.

In arder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, It needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the 5PPI test and is performed at an instrumental lewvel.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cashflows will result from collecting contractual cashflows, selling the financial assets, or
both

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at
amartised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Derecognition
Financial assets are de-recognised when, and only when,
& The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or
&  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obfigation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(2} the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or
{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i.e., when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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Measurement

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component
that is initially measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for
an item not &t fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at falr value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

The following actounting palicies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets
and liabilities.

Firanciol ossets ot omortised cost
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost bess impairment loss, iF any, using the effective interest method.

1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that
are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding,

All gther financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment bosses are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or 10ss on derecognition 18 recognised in profit or loss.

The financial assets at amortised cost comprise of other financial asssts, trade and other
receivables, due from related parties and cash and cash equivalents.

Financial Fabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at falr value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise of trade and other payvables, due to related
parties and loans from shareholder,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for investments in all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis:
= 1d-month expected credit losses: Expected credit losses that result from possible default
events within 12 maonths after the reporting date; and

— Litetime expected credit losses: Expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses, except for the following which are measured as 12-month expected credit losses:

- Bank balances, other financial assets, due from related parties and other receivables for
which credit risk {i.e., the risk of default accurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument] has not increased significantly since initial recognition,

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The Company applies a simplified
approach In calculating expected credit losses. The Company does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a Ioss allowance hased on lifetime expected credit losses at each
reporting date, The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtars and the
economic environment.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and whan estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort, This includes bath quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit risk assessment and including forward
looking Information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
15 rmore than 90 days past dus.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
= The customer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held}; or

-~ Thie financial asset (s more than 360 days past due,

The maximum perlod considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company s exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whiether financal assets carried at amortisad
cost are credit-impalned. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact an the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
ooourred,
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w)

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

Offsetting

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneaushy.

Equity
Share capital is recorded at the value of procesds received/receivable towards interest in

share capital of the Company.

Fair value measurement
Tie Company discloses the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost.

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place elther:

* |n the principal market for the asset or liability or

& |nthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liabvility.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market
participants would wse when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that the market
participants act in their best economic interests.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant judgments made in applying accounting polices that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Classiflcation of financlal assets
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.,

Impairment

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of property, plant and
eguipment to determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In
the absence of such indications, no further action is taken. If such Indications do exigt, an
analysis of each asset s undertaken to determine its met recoverable amaount and, if this Is
below its carrying amount, 3 provision is made.
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The Company applies expected credit loss model to measure loss allowance in case of
financial assets on the basis of 12-month expected credit losses or Lifetime expected cradit
losses depending on credit risk characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect
expected credit bosses, which are determined on a probability-weighted basis,

Investments in joint arrangements

Management considers that it has joint control over Kanoo Cleanmax Renewahlbes Asset Co
WL.L whereln it holds 50% of the voting rights. Based on the contractual arrangements,
unanimous consent is required from all the parties to the arrangement for all relevant
activities.

The Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co W.LL has been structured as a limited labllity
company and provides the parties to the arrangement with rights to the net assets of the
limited Hability company under the arrangement. Consequently, the investment is classified
as a joint venture,

Recognition of revenue and allocation of transaction price

identification of perfarmance abligotions

The Company determined that the sale of goods and services is provided as a single
component to customers and. accordingly it becomes single performance obligation in
respect of the goods being sold.

Determine timing of satisfoction of performance cbligotion

The Company concluded that the revenue from sales of goods is to be recognised at a paint
in time when the control of the goods has transferred to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.

The Company concluded that the revenue from construction projects and operations and
management services is to be recognised over time as the customer simultaneously receives
the benefit as the Company performs.

5 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carmying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Carrying values of property, plant and equipment

Fesidiual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be
obtained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at
the end of the assets’ estimated useful lives.
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Impairment
Assessments of net recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are basad on
assumptions regarding future cash flows expected to be received from the related assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The |oss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates, The management uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosad in note 3(v).

5taff end-of-service benefits

The Company computes the provision for the liability to staff end-of-service benefits stated
at AED BS,172 (previous year AED 71,221}, assuming that all employees were 10 leave as of
the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that no significant difference would
have arisen had the liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary inflation and
discount rates are likely to have approximately equal and opposite effacts,

Contract variations and claims

Variations orders are accounted for prospectively based on the nature and price of additional
products and services requested through the wvariation orders. During the year ended
31 March 2024, no amount of claim recognised as part of the revenue (previous year
AED Nil),

The Compary incledes variable consideration (including claims, re-measurable contract
values and discounts) in the transaction price to which it expects to be entitted from the
inception of the contract, The amount of variable consideration is restricted to the extent
that it is highly probable that 2 significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not ocour when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subseguently resobsed.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted ar substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent
upen the generation of future taxable profits during the perfods in which those temporary
differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making
thiz assessment, The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could
be reduced In the near term if estimates of future taxahle income during the carry forward
period are reduced.
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b, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture, fixtures

and office
equipment
AED
Cost
At 1 April 2022, at 31 March 2023 and at 31 March 2024 7,069
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 5,153
Depreclation 1,357
AL 31 March 2023 6,510
Depreciation 465
At 31 March 2024 6,975
Carrying amount
A 1 April 2022 1016
At 31 March 2023 5549
At 31 March 2024 a4
2024 2023
AED AED
T INVESTMENTS
al  Inwestment in an associate
CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0, Dubai
Fair value adjustment due to lass of contral 15,685,200 15,685,200
Share capital at cost 204,000 180,000
Additional imsestment acquired in current year™ 9,176,000 =
share of comprehensive income {cumulative) 1,342 407 989,254
26,407,607 16,854,454

() Incurrent year, CleanhMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO purchased additional 24 shares of AED 1,000
each share fram Marve| Bioscience FZE amounting AED 9,176,000 which resulted in increase
In staki of the Company by 4.8% i.e. from 36% to 40.8%.

The nature of Imeestment in an associate is as follows:

Name of associate Principal activity Country of Proportion (%) of
incorporation  ownership interest
2024 2023
CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo Solar energy
——— stz ekl UAE 40.80% 36%
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(a)

b)

(i}

Apgregated summary financial information relating to the assoctates are as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED
Assets 130,955,351 132,573,214
Liahilities BE1,95E 399 24477 164
Resenue 16,472,578 12,887,693
Profit 800,902 2,157,121
MNet assets of an assoclale 48 996,953 48,096,050
Interest in an associate A0, 80% A6.00%
Share of profit from associate 353,153 ¥ 76,562
Investment in subsidiaries
Sunraofs Envira Solar Energy Systems LLCT 13,520,000 147,000

In current year, the Company made additional investment in subsidiary of AED 13,220,000
by converting the subsidiary into a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Along with
above, the remaining share of non-controlling interest of AED 153,000 was also purchased
by the company at book value.

Investment in wholly owned subsidiaries incorporated in Thalland
2024 2023
AED AED
93,998 shares of THE 100 each converted @ THE 1 =
AED 0.113, 100,000 shares of THE 100 each paid up @
100 each comverted @ THE 1 = 0,1109, 1 shares of THE
100 each pald up & 100 each converted @ THE 1 =
0.1030 and 300,000 shares of THE 100 partial each paid
up @ THB 43.87 each corverted @ THBE 1 = 0.1030 in
Cleanmax [HQ (Thailand) Company Limited, Thailand
ipreviows  year 99,998 shares of THB 100 each
converted @ THBE 1 = AED 0.113 in Cleanmax IHQ
i Thallamd) Company Limited, Thailand).
3,593,365 1,128 258
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2024 023

AED AED
24,998 shares of THB 1,000 each converted @ THB 1 =
AED 0.11951; 12,500 shares of THB 1,000 each partial
paid up @ THEB 481,41 each comerted @ THE 1 = AED
0.12200; 12,500 shares of THB 1,000 each partial paid
up & THE 356,13 each comwerted @ THE 1 = AED
0.11739; 27,500 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid
up @ THE 25%0.90 each converted @ THE 1 = AED
0.11316; 135,000 shares of THE 1,000 partial paid up @
THB 2518 each converted @ THE 1 = AED 0.11499;
12,500 shares of THB 1000 partial each paid up @& THB
16246 each converted & THB 1 = 0.1019%0; 27500
shares of THB 1000 partial each pakd up & THB 749.10
each converted @ THB 1 = 0.10190; 135,000 shares of
THE 1000 partial each pald up @ THB 138.18 each
corverted @ THB 1 = 0.10340; 265,400 shares of THB
1,000 partial ezch paid up @& THB 250 each comverted
@ THE 1 =0.10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial
each paid up @ THE 325.93 each converted @ THB 1=
0. 10800; 135,000 shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid
up @ THB 284.0% each converted @ THE 1 = 0,11090;
265,400 shares of THE 1,000 partial each paid up @
THB 51.33 each corverted @ THE 1 = 0.11000; 265,400
shares of THB 1,000 partial each paid up @ THB 20.31
each converted @ THB 1 = 0.10300 in Cleanmax Energy
{Thailand) Ca., Ltd., Thailand
{previous year 24,998 shares of THE 1,000 each
converted @ THB 1 = AED 0.11991; 12,500 shares of
THE 1000 each partial pald up @ THB 481.41 each
converted @ THE 1 = AED 0.12200; 12,500 shares of
THE 1,000 each partial pald up @ THB 356.13 each
converted @ THE 1 = AED 0.11739; 27,500 shares of
THE 1,000 partial each paid up @& THBE 250.90 each
converted @ THB 1 = AED 0.11316; 135,000 shares of
THE 1,000 partial paid up & THE 251.8 each comverted
@ THE 1 = AED 0.1149%; 12,500 shares of THB 1,000
partial each paid up @ THB 162.48 each converted @
THE 1 = 0.10190; 27,500 shares of THE 1,000 partial
each paid up @ THE 749.10 each converted @ THE 1 =
0.10190; 135,000 shares of THE 1000 partial each paid
up @ THB 138.18 each converted @ THB 1 = 0,10340;
265,400 shares of THE 1000 partial each paid up @ THE
250 each converted @ THBE 1 = 0.108000 in Cleanmax
Energy (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Thailand. 31,419,509 20,343,043
245 shares of THB 100 each converted @ THB 1= &ED
0.09841 in Cleanmax Engineering (Thailand} Company
Limited. 2,394 2,354

35,015,268 21,478,695
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The nature of investmants in subsidiaries controlled by the Company are as follows:

Hama of swheidiany Printipal Cowsntry  Proportion (%) ol Propertion [5) of
acthdtles ol legal cwmership  Benaficlal ownership
incomoration inlerest interast
aga 23 2024 33
Sunrocfs Enviro 5olar Enerpy Electrical fitting contracting and LLAE (1] - 100 =
Sysbare LLC soilar enerpy system nstallation
Cleanmax B0 ({Thailand) Business  management  and  Thailand ag ag i 100

Company Limited, Thailand  peneral dendce.
HO (Thadand]) Company

Lirvited, Thailand
Cloanmay Energy (Thadand| Engaged in  production,  Thailand 9 93 100 10
Co,, Lid,, Thaland assembly,  distribution  and
ranagement services to bulld a
power plank
Cl=anrmax Ergmnpering Business management consulting Thailand 41 41 180 100

{Thailand) Company Limited  ane peracal service

2024 2023
AED AED
d]  INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
50% Interest in Kanoo Cleanmox Renewabies Asset Co
WLL, Bahrain
Share caplital at cost 49,573 -
Additional investments during the year 1,337,182 -
Share of profits 29,581 -
Total investment in joink ventures 1,416,336 --
The nature of investments in joint ventures is as follows:
Mame of Joint venturs Prirecipal Courtry % of share Hoof
activitins of Incorporation  capltal beld  beneficial ownership
interest

04 323 2024 2033
Emmeo Oeenmin Aenewabdes  Henting and operationad lessing of

: Bahrain &0 50 50 &
Assat Co W.LL, Bahrain machirery and aouiprmant

Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co W.LL and Cleanmax Solar MENA FZCO are jointly
controfled with equal beneficial interest between the venturers. There are no gquoted market
prices available for its shares.

Agpregated summary financial information relating to Kanoo Cleanmax Renewables Asset Co

W.LL, not adjusted for the preportion of ownership interest held by the Company is as
folbows:
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Summarised statement of financial position

2024 2023
AED AED
Mon-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment 2,263,080 -
Current assets ' %
= Trade and other recaivables 196,586
- Cash and cash eguivalem 2,819,865 -
Current assets o 3,016,451 -
Total aszets 5,279,531 -
Current liabilities 2,476,700 -
Total liabilities 2,476,700 -
Naot assets 2,802,831 -

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue 263,326 -
Direct costs [133,118) --
Gross Profit 130,208 =
Administrative expenses (71,047) -
Net profit — ‘59,161 p

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
A reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of
investment in joint venture is as follows

Met assets
Total assets (i) 5,279,531 -
Total Habilities i) 2,476,700 x
{i-ii) 2,802,831 -
Interest in Joint venture {%) S0 -
Interest in Joint venture 1,416,336 -
Carrying value 1,416,336 -
TOTAL (A+B+C+D) 76,359,211 38,480,149
B, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Long-term koan to related parties®® = 15,164,045 18,941,203
Other financial assets at amortised cost:

- Margin deposits™ £4,000 55,000
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(a)

(b}

(c)

10

15,228,045 18,996,293
2024 2023
AED AED

Disclosed under:
Mon-current financial assats 15,164,045 18,941,293
Current financial assets 64,000 55,000
15,228,045 18.995,293

A reconciliation of the movements in the long-term loans to related parties:

Opening balance 18,941,294 26,103,064
Loan given during the year - 9,366,310
Loan re-paid during the year {3,777,249) {16,528,080)
Closing balance 15,164,045 18941 294

Interest receivables from the above loans amounting to AED 877,574 (previous year
AED 584,411) are classified under other receivables.

This represents loan given to CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0 which is an associate AED
13,424,867 (previous year AED 14,924,867 and Cleanmax IHQ (Thailand) Company Limited
which is a subsidiary AED 1,739,178 [previous year AED 4,016,426). Both these loans are
unsecured and loan given to CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO is without a fixed repayment
schedule, These lnans carry a 6% p.a. rate of interest (previous year 6% p.a.).

Represents deposits amounting to AED 64,000 {previous year AED 55,000), held as security
against bankers’ letter of guarantee issued by the Company [note 31).

INVENTORIES
Project materials - 3,320,494
Goods-in-transit - 198,609
- 3,519,103
TRADE AMD OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 5,694,278 1,993,781
Deposits 50,000 -
staff advances - 153,701
Other receivables 925,419 534,411
6,669,697 2,731,893

The Company does not hold any collateral against trade receivables (previous year AED Nil).
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An age analysis of trade receivables as follows:

Mot past due

0 - S0 days

51 - 180 days past due
More than 180 days past due

11. OTHER CURREMNT ASSETS

Prepayments
Advance to vendors

12 RELATED PARTIES
The Company enters into transactions with entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in International Accounting Standard 24, The management considers such
transactions to be in the normal course of business and are at prices defermined by the
management.

2024 2023
AED AED
2,843,792 -
1,336,927 1,987,722
1,384,503 -
129,056 5,050
5,694,278 1,993,781
176,587 57,792
135,038 33,634
311,625 131,426

Related parties comprise the parent company, subsidiaries, associate, joint venture, directors
and key management personneal.

At the reporting date, significant balances with related parties were as follows:

Irmvestments

Inchuded in
ather
receablas

Long-tenm koan
to related
partias

DOue from
related parties

Due 10 relaced
parties

Parent
campanyy

AED

L5752

Subsidiaries

AED
48,535, 268

21,625,685

35,860
240,052

L 73%178
4,016,426

B85 210
F5TLAM

Asigciate

AED
207 607
1b,B54,454

841,905
344,359

13,434,867
14,934,367
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Joint
vEnure

AED
1,416,336

13,845

ey

management
parspnne|

AED

378,835

Total
FiIFL

AED
76350251

025,419

15,164,045

2,883 239

1,554,033

Total

AED

3E 480, 142

84411

18 941,203

5572270
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5483277
Marant
‘Comipsa Ty
AED
LoAmMs fram
sharahoider 28,121,857
15,365 488
Guarantes
received FASDAO0
FA500000
Prevsimian fr
stafd ani-of-
service benedit -

313,355 -
Subsidiaries  Associate
AED AED

- 276,855
Jaint Hey
vEnMung  management
personnil
AED AED
- 28172
= 71221

Tatal
2024

AED

28,121 857

7350000

89,172

1,138,531

Tokal

203

AED

18,355,468

¥.3540,000

71,281

All balances are unsecured and are expected to be settled in cash except for the guarantees
received. Repayment and other terms are set out in notes 7, 8, 18 and 30.

Significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Ressnue

[Hirect oosEts

Expenies recharped o a
refated party

Expanses recharged from a
refated party

Transfer of staff end-of-service
biemefits payabls [nate 19}

Staff casts and other beradits

Stafl end-ol-serace bensfits

Irberest intame

Finance costy

Parent Subsidiaries
comparny
AED AFD
- B513,243
— 13,603,542
4,230,209 4,894 447
21,254,064 3,051,365
175,000 5AS, 472
- A4, 305
184, 784 2.48%, 260
157,035 15,172
- 131,990
- 185,486
1,516,088
1,458,645
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Associats Director)
Kay
managemant
personnel
AED BED
41 707 =
65254
240,300 168,300
- &05, 599
s 17,5951
= 57,426
871,14
1,508,254

Total
2034

AED
B.513.243

B, 716,780

710,472

2678, 744

A0B, 500

17,951

1.005,118

1,516,058

Total
1023

AEL}

13,603,542

15,305 439

GEL, 345

824,005

B5.254

B5.99%

AT AR

1,606,720

1,498, GR6
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The Company also provides funds to/receives funds from related parties as working capital
facilities at fixed rates of interest.

Certain administrative related services are availed from a related party as per agreed rates.

2024 2023
AED AED
13. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITES
Contract assets relating to costs incurred to fulfil a
contract 2,074,642 1,690,315
Disclosed as:
Current contract assets 2,074,642 1,680,315
Contract liabilitles 637,796 1622511
Diizclozed as;
Current contract liabilities 637,796 1,622,511
14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 4,101 34,006
Bank balances in current accounts 1,058,773 6,491,353
1,062,874 6,525,399
15.  SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and paid up:
24,830 shares of AED 1,000 each (previous year
16,877 shares af AED 1,000 each) 24,830,000 16,877,000
Marme Mo. of shares AED
Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd. 24,830 24,830,000

{a] During the year vide an amendment 10 the memorandum of association, the Company has
increased their share capital by issuance of additional 7,953 shares to CleanMax Erviro
Energy 3olutions Private Lid. The shareholders as at 31 March 2024 and at 31 March 2023
and their interests as at that date in the share capital of the Company were as follows:

MNarma At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
Mo. of AED Mol %of Hooof AED %ol Sof
Shares holding prafit  Shares halding  profit
sharing sharing

CleanMax  Enwire  Energy
Sofutions Private Lid. L4830 24.830,000 100% 100% 16877 16877000 100%  100%

2 830 M E3I0000 100% 100% 216877 16377000 100%  100%
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2024 2023
AED AED
16.  SHARE PREMIUIM
Dpening balance 19,830,420 887,440
Premium on additional shares issued
during the yearl! 24,473,361 19,019,100
Transaction costs (111,380) [76,2120)
Closing balance 44,192,401 19,830,420

(a} Share premium of AED 44,379,801 (net transaction cost of AED 242,080) arising out of
19,280 shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2024,

17.  SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

Opening balance 14,775,948 9,017,200
Share application money on additional shares - 34,796,848
Allotment of shares (14,775,948) [29,038,100)

- 14,775,048

18,  LDANS FROM SHAREHOLDER'™

Cpening balance 18,365,488 24 425 061
Receipts during the year [net) 9,200,000 14,000,000
Interest credited 1,516,088 1,498 686
Interest pakd (959,719} [1,606,259)
Loan paid during the vear - {19,952,000]
Closing balance — _I'I-!,lzl.as?_ 18,365 488

(a}  This represents interest bearing loans recelved from the shareholder with a maturity of one
to three years from the date of receipt of loans as at reporting date,

(b} Below are the loans details:
- Loan amounting to AED 3,426,204 is repavable within a year and subject to an interest rate
at 5% per annum,

- Loan amounting to AED 15,047,123 is subject o an interest rate at 6% per annum having
maturity till 7 September 2025,

- Loan amounting to AED 169,754 s subject to an interest rate at 10% per annum having
maturity till 24 November 2025,

- Loan amounting to AED 9,478,776 is subject to an interest rate at 6% per annum having
maturity 3 July 2026,
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20.

£1.

42,

23

2024 2023
AED AED
Disclosed under:
Mon-current portion 24,695,653 17,701,527
Current portion 3,426,204 663,961
28,121 857 18,365,488
PROVISION FOR STAFF END-OF-SERVICE-BENEFITS
Opening balance 71,21 131,034
Prowiston for the year 17,951 57426
Transfer from a related party & 65,254
Pald during the year 1182, 4593)
Clasing balance 89,172 71,221

BANK FACILITIES

Bank facilities from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank guarantee of

AED 7,350,000 received from parent company.,

The bank borrowings are subject to certain financial covenants such as minimum manthly

account turnover routing (excluding any TR/ LBD credits) of AED 500,000,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payvables 1,821,772 445,440
Accruals 369,383 144,141
2,191,155 589,581
The entire trade and other payables are due for payment in one year,
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances received from customer 242,428 .
VAT payable (net) 72,133 316,994
Employee related payables 17,005 8,500
331,566 325,494

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company continues
25 3 going cancern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of return on its investment

comimensurate with the level of risk assumed.
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24,

Capital comprises equity funds as presented in the statement of financial positicn along with
loans from the shareholder, share premium and amounts due to/from related parties, Debt
comprises total amounts owing to third parties, net of cash and cash eqguivalents,

The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of the
bank facilities availed, The Company has complied with all the capital requirements to which
it is subject.

Funds generated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party
net of funds provided to related parties are retained in the business according to the
business requirements to maintain the capital at desired levels.

REVENUE

The Company generates revenuve from the transfer goods and services over tirme and at a
point in time. The disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers by geographical
segments, type of services and timing of revenue recognition ks presented below. The
management believes that this best depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of

the Cormpany’s revenue and cash flows.

2024 2023
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
= WAE 20,006,631 32,046,542
- Thailand 459,813 610,545
= Bahrain 2,766,120 68,492
23,232,564 32,725,579
Major good/service lines
Construction/installation projects
- Solar equipment installation 11,484,713 3,303,514
Sale of goods
- Sale of goods 11,426,248 24,254,002
Operation and maintenance
- Operation and maintenance 321,603 167,943
23,232 564 32,725,579
Timing of revenue recognition
- At a point in time 14,750,850 24,421,965
- Dver time 8,481,714 8,303,014
23,233 564 32,725,579
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25,

26.

i

[a}

28,

29,

DIRECT COSTS
Purchase of project materials
Other direct costs

Changes in inventories

OTHER INCOME

Fareigm exchange gain (net)
Credit balance written back
Other miscellaneous income

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits™
Staff end-of-service benefits
short-term lease expenses
Prafessional fees

Marketing expenses
Commission and referral fees
Insurance charges

Audit fees

Travel expenses

Bank charges

Depreciation (note &)
Foreign exchange losses (net)
Other expanses

It includes director’s remuneration of AED 168,300 [previous year AED 605,959].

INTEREST INCOME
On loan to related parties

FINANCE COS5TS

On loans from shareholder
Other finance costs

On bank overdrafts
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2024 2023
AED AED
16,224,395 35,038,073
1,644 664 1,832 386
17,869,058 35,870,459
3,320,494 {2,270,604)
71,189,553 14,559,855
- 61,362
29,927 -
35,032 g, 564
64,959 69,926
587 222 811,106
17,951 57,426
35,016 35,003
128 871 04,8591
61,598 94,198
60,409 125,809
56,118 59,941
26,000 41,500
21,266 33,470
8828 8,401
465 1,357
285 847 ,,
211,636 99,674
1,541,227 1,462,776
1,005,118 1,696,720
1,516,088 1,498 636
2449 2499 275,345
- 3,567
"~ 1,765,387 1,777,598
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30.

FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments

Classification and fair values
The net carrying amounts as &t the reporting date of financial assets and financial liabilities
are as follows:
At amortised cost
2024 2023
Financial assets AED AED
Other financial assets [current and non-current) 15,228,045 18,996,293
Trade and ather receivables 6,669,597 2,731,893
Due from related parties 8,832,219 9,572,270
Cash and cash equivalents 1,062,874 6,525,399
31,842,835 37 B25,855
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,191,155 5EO.541
Due to related parties 1,954,039 1,138,531
Loans from shareholder {current and non-current) 28,121,857 18,365,488
32,267,051 20,093,600

Fair value measurement ond disclosures
The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at
each reporting date.

The fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, trade and other receivables, due from related
parties, other financial assets (current), trade and other payables, loans from shareholder
and due to refated parties approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to determine the fair values af other
financial assets/liabilities:

Mon-current financial assets are evaluated by the Company using valuation technigues. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible inputs are based on parameters such as Interest rates, specific country risk
factors, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks characteristics. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of provisions, are not
materially different from their fair values.

Fair vaiues of loans from shareholder are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debts on similar items, credit risk and remaining maturities. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amount of such liability, is not materially different from its
fair value.
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Financial risk management

Risk manogement objectives

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk [imits and other controls. This
praocess of risk management is critical 1o the Company's continuing profitability. The
Company’s risk management focusses on actively securing short to medium term cash flows
by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

The management conducts and operates the business in a prudent manner, taking into
account the significant risks to which the business is or could be exposed,

The primary risks to which the business is exposed, which are unchanged from the previous
year, comprise credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks {including currency risks, cash flow
interast rate risks and fair value interest rate risks).

The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks which are summarised below:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obtigation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk is managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular
monitoring and follow-up.

Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk
comprise principally bank accounts, trade and other receivables, due from related parties,
loan to related parties and margin deposits.

The Company's bank accounts and margin deposits are placed with high credit quality
financial institutions,

The management assesses the credit risk arising from trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties and loan to related parties taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. Based on the assessment Individual risk limits are
determined.

Amounts due from related parties relate to transactions arising in the normal course of
business with minimal credit risk.
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At the reporting date 81% of trade receivables was due from three customers (previous year
95% due from two customers situated in the UAE].

At the reporting date 100% of due from a related party are due from a related party
(previous year S8% due from two related parties).

At the reparting date, thare is no significant concentration of credit risk from any particular
industry as the Company's customers are fraom diverse industries,

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade
receivables and contract assets, Loss rates are calculated using a “flow rate’ method basad on
the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of definquency to
write-off. Flow rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based on
the following commeon credit risk characteristics = gecgraphic region, age of customer
relationship and type of product purchased.,

Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision is required
under [FRS 9.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Compary's exposure to lquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities,

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without Incurring unacoceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. The Company manages liguidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company
lirmits its iquidity risk by ensuring adequate bank facilities are avallable,

The table below summarises the maturities of the Company's undiscounted financial
liabilities at the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market
imterest rates,

Less than one year One to five years Tatal
1024 iR 2024 023 2024 2073
AED BAED AED AEE AED AED
Trade and other payables 2,191,155 589 581 . 2 2,191,355 580,581
Bue to related partles L954,030 1,138,531 - - 1,854,030 1,135,531
Loans from sharsholdes 3,426,204 663,961 24,695.653 17,701,527 IBAZLEST 13 355488

7,571,308 2,302,073 24695653 17701527 3LI6T051 230003 600
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31

3z

33.

arket risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings
of financial instrument, The objective of market risk management |5 10 manage and control
market risk exposures within acceplable parameters, while optimizing the returns.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in forelgn exchange rates.

There are no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial
liabilities are denominated in UAE Dirham ar US Dollar to which the Dirham is fixed, except
for the following:

2024 2023
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
British Pound Sterling 3,603 3,540

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrements will fluctuate because of
changes in market nterest rabes.

Loan to related partles and loans from shareholder are subject to fixed interest rates at levals
generally obtained in the UAE and are therefore exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Bankers' letter of bank guarantee [note 8 (c)] 3,409,301 3,541,583

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Previows year’s figures have been regrouped/redlassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable to those of the current pericd,

CORPORATE TAX

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released the Federal Dacree-Law No. 47 of
2023 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses (the ‘CT Law'] to enact a Federal
Corporate Tax {*CT') regime in the UAE, The CT Law is effective for the financial years
beginning on or after L Jume 2023. Decision Mo, 116 of 2022 specifies the threshold of
incomne (as AED 375,000) over which a corporate tax of 9% would apply and accordingly, the
CT Law is now considered 1o be substantively enacted.
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For the Company, current taxes shall be accoumbed for as appropriate in the financial
statements for the accounting period beginning on 1 April 2023. In accordance with 145 12
Income Taxes, the related deferred tax accounting impact has been considered for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024,

Based on the information available to date, the Company has assessed the deferred tax
implications for the year ended 31 March 2024 and, after considering its interpretations of
applicable tax law, official pronouncements, cabinet decisions and ministerial decisions
(especially with regard to transition rules), it has been concluded that deferred tax
implications are not expected to be material.

The Company shall continue to monitor critical Cabinet Declsions to determine the impact on
the Compamny, from deferred tax perspectivie,

For CLEANMAN SOLAR MENA FEZCO

B
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